
            
Board of Finance  Page 2 of 6 
Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2016      

      DRAFT 

    MONROE BOARD OF FINANCE 
 Monroe, Connecticut 
 
      Meeting Minutes 

        September 28, 2016  
 
 
Present:                    Chairman Michael Manjos   

Vice-Chairman John Ostaszewski  
Board Member Debra Dutches 
Board Member Craig Hirsch 
Board Member Ted Quinlan 
Board Member Christine Rigby 

           
Also present:              Finance Director Ron Bunovsky, Jr.  
                                    Deputy Finance Director Heidi Meade 

Tax Collector Manny Cambra 
Town Treasurer Debbie Heim 

    
Absent:                       First Selectman Steve Vavrek 

    

CALL TO ORDER-Chairman Manjos called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

REVIEW OF MINUTES-Regular Meeting Minutes/Voting Record for August 24, 2016 

Motion to Approve the Meeting Minutes and Voting Record of August 24, 2016 
Motion: (J. Ostaszewski) 
To approve the meeting minutes and voting record 
Second: (T. Quinlan) 
Discussion: None 
Motion passed 5-0  
 
FIRST SELECTMAN’S COMMUNICATIONS-There were no communications at tonight’s 
meeting. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION-Steve Kirsch, 35 Applegate Lane, said he attended the Town 
Council meeting and they discussed expanding the Town’s tax relief ordinance.  He said that he 
thought it would be beneficial to pull out the tax relief amount from the Grand List adjustment 
calculation and showing it as an expense.  He continued that he hoped the Board can accomplish 
this for the upcoming budget cycle as he feels that while it is important to provide tax relief, it is 
important for it to be visible to the public.  Chairman Manjos said that is one of the changes they 
were looking to make. Mr. Bunovsky said that it is not really an expense; Chairman Manjos said 



            
Board of Finance  Page 2 of 6 
Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2016      

that it can be footnoted and pulled out of the Grand List calculation; “presentation wise, it can be 
changed by listing it separately and show the cost, the state’s contribution and the Town’s net 
expense; it can be listed as a schedule.”  Mr. Kirsch continued that he felt that it needs to be 
shown as “there is a certain cost to the Town and in the budget; you want to see how it changes 
year over year.”   
Pete Delmastro, 170 Bagburn Road, asked if the Board of Education proceeded with the repair 
work that was needed on the Turf Field; Dr. Zamary responded they did have the work done at 
an approximate cost of $17,500.   
 
Chairman Manjos introduced Max Murray, a Masuk student working on his Capstone Project, 
who attended the meeting tonight.   

NEW BUSINESS 

Town Road-Grant Funds-Authorization from the State to use Town Aid Road and 
Municipal Grants-in-Aid funds for alternative uses-Mr. Bunovsky said that last year, they 
asked for a waiver to use Town Aid Road funds for the purchase of two new trucks for 
Department of Public Works and this year, they did something similar.  He said that the items 
were in the Capital Plan, the request was made to the Office of Policy and Management and was 
granted.  The Board Members received copies of OPM’s acceptance.  Board Member Quinlan 
confirmed that the items were in the budget and no bonding is needed.  Mr. Bunovksy said that 
$1.1 million is available in Town Aid for Roads as of now but that does not include any funding 
the Town may receive this year as that figure is a moving target.  The items requested are: 

• Crew Leader Truck Ford F550 
• Road Inspector Vehicle-Ford Explorer 
• Skid Steer Car 299D2 XPS with attachments 
• Roadside Boom Mower Tiger on John Deere 
• Truck Body 

 
It was noted that though the Skid Steer Car 299D2 XPS with attachments, though at a higher cost 
than initially budgeted, offers a myriad of uses that would lessen the need for outside contractors 
on some jobs.   Board Member Quinlan asked if the Town Aid for Roads expires, Mr. Bunovsky 
said they did not though the funds can only be used for a prescribed purpose.   

Update on Road Work from Public Works -Mr. Nowacki said he met with Ms. Meade today 
and the current unencumbered balance is $1.4 million. The estimated Grand Total is 
$1,851,568.00 and the Grand Total of the work completed to date is $1,008,652.87.  He 
continued that drainage pipe issues were discovered early last winter and the cameras they 
purchased captured the extent of the damages.  Mr. Nowacki provided the Board Members with 
pictures of the pipes which showed their condition and need for repair. Chairman Manjos asked 
the age of the pipes; Mr. Nowacki responded they are approximately 50 years old and that they 
were a cost effective pipe at the time and it was utilized by many communities.  Over 4000 feet 



            
Board of Finance  Page 2 of 6 
Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2016      

of piping on Turkey Roost, Bagburn, Camelot and Blue Hills has been replaced. He continued 
that it was necessary to bring in an outside contractor as the department does not have the 
resources; it was noted that they have engaged the State Contract Bid and the contractor they are 
using is under State Bid; “we are working with him, he is pulling the pipe, we are supplying the 
material and working with him so it a cost effective way to do the job.”   Board Member Quinlan 
asked what is replacing the old pipe; the replacement is 15” inside diameter plastic pipe that does 
not corrode, rust and is engineered for this type of job.  The only other option is concrete which 
is cost prohibitive.  Though replacing the pipe delayed the paving, it saved the Town from 
having to re-do the roads when the pipes failed.    Chairman Manjos asked Mr. Nowacki when he 
anticipated having all the road work done; Mr. Nowacki anticipates having all the work done by 
September 2017.  Board Member Quinlan asked for an accounting of what the Town has 
received for the funds they have spent; the last PCI was done approximately a year ago and the 
PCI improved from the original report.  Chairman Manjos noted that the original report was a 10 
year forecast at a cost of $24 million and no one was comfortable with that amount so it was 
decided to sketch out $10 million to see what could be accomplished.  He continued that they 
requested a report and the results were better than anticipated.  He proposed that once the work is 
completed on the roads presented tonight that another report be done and consider a 3-4 year 
plan rather than a year by year plan. Mr. Nowacki noted that the original report did not include 
the drainage issue which had a significant impact on the amount of paving that was able to be 
done.  Chairman Manjos said that he appreciated the update tonight and suggested another 
meeting in January prior to budget season.  Board Member Kirsch asked Mr. Nowacki if he is 
happy with where they presently are with the money they have spent; he responded that he was.   

Discussion on Health Department GIS-Dr. Zamary gave a presentation to the Board on the 
Pilot Program.  He said that they are working with Metrocog, formerly known as the Greater 
Bridgeport Resource Council, and the goal is to expand that work to have centralized resources 
for centralized data.  The GIS layers include:  

• Imagery 
• Elevation 
• Transportation 
• Addresses 
• Boundaries 
• Water Features 
• Survey Control 
• Data in all forms: Texts, Images and Video 
•  

Dr. Zamary said that Mark Getz, lead software developer at Metrocog is the Head of the State 
Commission on GIS and they have a good working relationship.  

 



            
Board of Finance  Page 2 of 6 
Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2016      

The Pilot Program Proposal is to create electronic forms for the Health Department including 
creating a restaurant inspection form that can be completed in the field to save time and 
resources. The proposal will have a limited impact on the budget; but this will ultimately have an 
impact on line changes for budget.  He said that one of those changes will be the purchase of 
more tablets and less desktops.  Dr. Zamary continued with a schematic; the step this year will 
be more entry internally.  

Metrocog sees working with the Town as an opportunity to get a grant by using the Town as a 
pilot; and the town benefits from building what they want.  Metrocog is going to fund Laserfisch, 
a product that creates workflow information.  We have to pay for individual licenses but the 
server, back-office and training are being paid for by Metrocog and they have already bought one 
Galaxy tablet for each Town which is now at the Health Department.  There will be five licenses 
not to exceed $3000 so that Dr. Zamary, Ms. Coleman, the Health Director, Sanitarian and 
Clerical staff can all work on it together.  The annual maintenance is $600.00; it was asked if 
additional licenses might be needed in the future; Dr. Zamary said that it was a possibility.    

Dr. Zamary continued that we can convert Town phones to WiFi hot spots for a very low cost at 
approximately $120.00 so the Galaxy tablet can be used everywhere.   

There is timeline for the program for the year, a meeting with Land Use tomorrow and we have 
met with Town Council and Board of Finance.  

Bond Refunding-Chairman Manjos said that this has already been approved by Town Council 
and the process is moving forward; “we technically don’t have any oversight on bond 
refunding.” Mr. Bunovsky said that the bond is scheduled to be priced on October 18th and close 
on November 1st.   

Old Business 

Chalk Hill-Chairman Manjos said that he and Mr. Bunovsky reviewed the Fletcher Thompson 
report said that the items to be done if they were keeping the building for any length of time are 
boilers, HVAC, roof and windows. Board Member Rigby will be working with First Selectman 
Vavrek on putting together some forecasting on revenue.  Chairman Manjos said that there are 
three ways: knock it down, if you run it as a building there will be costs and the third option is to 
leave the building as it is.  Parks and Recreation have scheduled programs through the winter. 
Chairman Manjos continued that they need to make a decision on if they lock it up or keep it 
going but that decision will need to be made by both Town Council and the Board of Finance.  
Fully operational the cost is $250,000 for the year. 

Discussion of Town Attorney and Process of Approving Legal Bills-There was no discussion 
on this at tonight’s meeting though it will continue to be on the agenda for review and 
discussion.  



            
Board of Finance  Page 2 of 6 
Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2016      

 

Discussion on Road Progress-This was discussed earlier at tonight’s meeting.  

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Expense and Revenues-Board Member Dutches said that they have the letter from the auditor 
from the last year and Chairman Manjos said they have not heard back.   

Departments-There was no discussion on departments.  

Tax Collector-Mr. Cambra said that the report is as of the close of business last evening.  He 
projected he will come close to where he was last year. There is a tax sale coming up and will 
occur in this fiscal year and it will be enough to ensure that he makes budget.  There are 
approximately 50 properties in the tax sale but that number can change dramatically; all the 
properties are residential rather than commercial.  

At the close of the year, there should be $7000 going into the Undesignated Fund Balance.  
There is a rumor that the Motor Vehicle Supplement is a disaster 

Treasurer’s Report-the current interest rate is .45% The Board Members did not have any 
questions. 

The Board of Education Insurance Fund-There was no discussion at tonight’s meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to Adjourn at 8:55 pm 

Motion: (T. Quinlan) 
Motion to adjourn 
Second: (M. Manjos) 
Discussion: None 
Motion passed 5-0  
 
 

 

 


